Sacramento Regional Transit District

N

gad Agenda

COMBINED SPECIAL MEETING OF THE RETIREMENT BOARDS FOR THE EMPLOYEES
AND RETIREES OF THE SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT
9:00 A.M., WEDNESDAY, MAY 5, 2021 via Webex

Join from the meeting link: https://sacrt-046d-16ae.my.webex.com/join/rmatthews
Call in: 1-510-338-9438 Access Code: 126 931 3879

Webex App: Join Meeting # 126 931 3879

Online: Go to www.webex.com and click Join Meeting. Enter Meeting # 126 931 3879

MEETING NOTE: This is a joint and concurrent meeting of the five independent Retirement
Boards for the pension plans for the employees and retirees of the Sacramento
Regional Transit District. This single, combined agenda designates which
items will be subject to action by which board(s). Members of each board may
be present for the other boards’ discussions and actions, except during
individual closed sessions.

ROLL CALL ATU Retirement Board: Directors: Li, Kennedy, Niz, McGee Lee
Alternates: Jennings, Land

IBEW Retirement Board: Directors: Li, Kennedy, Ohlson, Bibbs
Alternates: Jennings, McCleskey

AEA Retirement Board: Directors: Li, Kennedy, Devorak, McGoldrick
Alternates: Jennings, Santhanakrishnan

AFSCME Retirement Board: Directors: Li, Kennedy, Guimond, Thompson
Alternates: Jennings, Salva

MCEG Retirement Board: Directors: Li, Kennedy, Ham, Norman
Alternates: Jennings, Flores

PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA
At this time the public may address the Retirement Board(s) on subject matters pertaining to Retirement Board business listed on
the Consent Calendar, any Closed Sessions or items not listed on the agenda. Remarks may be limited to 3 minutes subject to the
discretion of the Common Chair. Members of the public wishing to address one or more of the Boards may submit a “Public
Comment Speaker Card” to the Assistant Secretary. While the Retirement Boards encourage your comments, State law prevents
the Boards from discussing items that are not set forth on this meeting agenda. The Boards and staff take your comments very
seriously and, if appropriate, will follow up on them.

16353873.1



CONSENT CALENDAR

ATU IBEW AEA AFSCME MCEG

1. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the March 10, 2021 Quarterly Retirement X 0 [0 [0 @O
Board Meeting (ATU). (Gobel)

2. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the March 10, 2021 Quarterly Retirement X O O O
Board Meeting (IBEW). (Gobel)

3. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the March 10, 2021 Quarterly Retirement OO0 X O O
Board Meeting (AEA). (Gobel)

4. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the March 10, 2021 Retirement Board O O 0O X ]
Meeting (AFSCME). (Gobel)

5. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the March 10, 2021 Quarterly Retirement  [] [ [ [ X

Board Meeting (MCEG). (Gobel)

NEW BUSINESS
ATU IBEW AEA AFSCME MCEG

6.Motion: Review Actuarial Experience Study and Adopt Economic and X O O 0O ]
Demographic Assumptions. (ATU) (Gobel)

7 .Motion: Review Actuarial Experience Study and Adopt Economic and O X O 0O ]
Demographic Assumptions. (IBEW) (Gobel)

8.Motion: Review Actuarial Experience Study and Adopt Economic and O O X X X
Demographic Assumptions. (AEA, AFSCME, MCEG) (Gobel)

9. Motion: Accept Actuarial Valuation and Approve Actuarially Determined X 0 O 0O [
Contribution Rates for Fiscal Year 2022. (ATU) (Gobel)

10. Motion: Accept Actuarial Valuation and Approve Actuarially Determined 1 X O O [
Contribution Rates for Fiscal Year 2022. (IBEW) (Gobel)

11. Motion: Accept Actuarial Valuation and Approve Actuarially Determined ] O X X X
Contribution Rates for Fiscal Year 2022. (AEA, AFSCME, MCEG)
(Gobel)

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES

REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS

ADJOURN

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC
It is the policy of the Boards of Directors of the Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans to encourage participation in the meetings of
the Boards of Directors. At each open meeting, members of the public shall be provided with an opportunity to directly address the Board on items of
interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Boards.

This agenda may be amended up to 72 hours prior to the meeting being held. An agenda, in final form, is located by the front door of Regional
Transit’s building at 1400 — 29" Street and posted to SacRT’s website at www.sacrt.com.

16353873.1



Any person(s) requiring accessible formats of the agenda or assisted listening devices/sign language interpreters should contact the Human
Resources Pension and Retiree Services Administrator at 916-556-0296 or TDD 916/483-4327 at least 72 business hours in advance of the Board
Meeting.

Copies of staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the agenda are on file with the Human Resources
Administrative Technician at 916-556-0298 and/or Clerk to the Board of Directors of the Sacramento Regional Transit District and are available for
public inspection at 1400 29" Street, Sacramento, CA. Any person who has questions concerning any agenda item may call the Human Resources
Administrative Technician of Sacramento Regional Transit District to make inquiry.

16353873.1



Sacramento Regional Transit District
Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting (ATU)
Wednesday, March 10, 2021
MEETING MINUTES

This meeting was held as a common meeting of the Sacramento Regional Transit
District Retirement Boards (AEA, AFSCME, ATU, IBEW, MCEG).

This meeting was a teleconference because of the COVID-19 pandemic and in
accordance with the Governor’'s Executive Order N-25-20.

The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:03 a.m. A quorum was present
comprised as follows: Directors Kennedy, Li, Niz and McGee Lee. Alternate Jennings
was also present. Alternate Land was absent.

The Common Chair presided over this Retirement Board meeting.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to calling for motions or a vote, Manager, Pension & Retiree Services John Gobel
indicated that Item 11 (the Independent Auditor’'s Report) had initially included inaccurate
information about the composition of the IBEW Retirement Board. Mr. Gobel explained
that, per a subsequent conversation with the auditor, this agenda item had been corrected
in the agenda posted on the SacRT web site. Accordingly, Mr. Gobel also explained that
today’s vote regarding Item 11 would be inclusive of the administrative change to the
auditor’s report.

1. Motion:  Approving the Minutes for the December 9, 2020 Quarterly Retirement
Board Meeting (ATU). (Gobel)

5. Motion:  Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended
December 31, 2020 for the ATU Pension Plan (ATU). (Adelman)

8. Motion:  Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2020 State Controllers Report for the
ATU Pension Plan (ATU). (Adelman)

11. Motion: Receive and File the Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s
Report for the Twelve-Month Period Ended June 30, 2020 (ALL).
(Adelman)

Director Kennedy moved to adopt Agenda Items 1, 5, 8, and 11. The motion was

seconded by Director Li. Agenda Items 1, 5, 8, and 11 were carried unanimously by roll
call vote: Ayes - Kennedy, Li, Niz and McGee Lee, Noes — None.

17492113.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

NEW BUSINESS

20. Information: Investment Performance Review by BMO Pyrford for the ATU,
IBEW and Salaried Funds for the International Large Capital Equity
Asset Class for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2020 (ALL).
(Adelman)

Jamie Adelman introduced John Mirante, Chris Remus and Luke Casey from BMO
Pyrford. Mr. Mirante reported that the management team is stable and has not
experienced any changes in personnel, while Mr. Casey discussed investment
performance relative to the benchmark for the International Large Capital asset class.

Brent Bernegger asked for information about how BMO Pyrford has outperformed the
benchmark by a significant margin since 2012. Mr. Casey responded that bear market
periods have been shorter, and the fund’s investment philosophy has consistently
focused on investing in companies that are less leveraged than their peer group and
building a portfolio intended to preserve capital in down markets and limit losses relative
to the benchmark.

There were no other questions from staff or the Boards.

21. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the ATU,
IBEW and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter
Ended December 31, 2020 (ALL). (Adelman)

Ms. Adelman introduced Uvan Tseng from Callan LLC (Callan), who reviewed
investment performance for the quarter ending December 31, 2020. Mr. Tseng indicated
that the retirement fund reached a high-water mark of $350 million during the quarter
ended December 31, 2020 and that value managers and the energy sector were stand-
outs in terms of overall returns. Mr. Tseng also addressed inflation by contrasting the
10-Year Treasury yield from last August with the yield from the prior week, but noted
that the TIPS index had still declined on a year-to-date basis.

AEA Retirement Board Director Devorak referenced the current asset allocation and
asked whether the Board should review the current25% allocation to fixed income. Mr.
Tseng responded that an asset allocation study would be presented at the next
guarterly Board meeting and, that long-term assumptions for fixed income are still
positive.

Ms. Adelman advised the Boards of the status of the ongoing transition to of funds into
the new real estate asset class. She informed the Boards that $15 million was invested
with Clarion Partners on March 1, 2021, and that the similar-sized investment with
Morgan Stanley would be completed over the next few quarters as capital is called.

Page 2 of 6

17492113.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

Director Kennedy moved to adopt Agenda Item 20. The motion was seconded by
Director Li. Agenda Item 20 was carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes -
Kennedy, Li, Niz and McGee Lee, Noes — None.

22. Information: Receive Information on Status of ATU Retirement Plan Experience
and Valuation Studies and Actuarially Determined Contribution
Rates (ATU). (Gobel)

Agenda items 22-24 were presented together.

Mr. Gobel introduced the consulting actuary for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried Employee
Retirement Plans, Graham Schmidt of Cheiron, and indicated that Mr. Schmidt would be
discussing the preliminary results of the valuations for the Plan year ended June 30,
2020. Mr. Gobel also explained that Mr. Schmidt would be discussing the preliminary
results of a concurrent experience study, which was the first such study conducted
since 2016 and which could include new assumptions regarding inflation and other
economic factors. Ms. Adelman explained that the actuary would be seeking direction
from the Boards to finalize certain economic assumptions in order for him to complete
the corresponding valuations.

Mr. Schmidt presented a preliminary review of the actuarial valuations in progress and
provided information regarding the experience study, noting that the preliminary results
were likely to change as certain items were finalized. Based on preliminary data,
investment earnings on a market basis were approximately 1.8% for the ATU and IBEW
Plans, and 1.5% for the Salaried Plan. On an actuarial (smoothed) basis, the rate of
return was between approximately 4.9% - 5.4% for all Plans. Payroll increased more
than was assumed, due to a higher participant count, although contribution rates did not
increase. PEPRA member contribution rates would not change under current
assumptions, because normal cost would not change enough to trigger revision under
PEPRA.

Regarding existing economic assumptions, Mr. Schmidt explained that the current
assumed rate of return for the Plans is 7.25% and the current inflation assumption is
3%, resulting in a real return rate of 4.25%.

Mr. Schmidt recommended reducing the Plans’ inflation assumption from 3% to 2.5%,
given the historical annual inflation rates since 2000, Callan’s 10-year inflation
assumption, and rates applied by other public plans. Mr. Schmidt recommended that, if
the Boards reduce the inflation assumption to 2.5%, the wage inflation assumption and
payroll/amortization assumptions be revised to 2.75%, rather than matching the inflation
assumption, to be consistent with experts’ projections.

Mr. Schmidt presented modeling prepared using the Plans’ portfolio under three
different sets of capital market projections and inflation assumptions (Callan’s 10-year
projection, and the 10-year and 20-year assumptions based on results of a national

Page 3 of 6

17492113.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

survey of defined benefit pension plans conducted by another actuarial firm). Averaging
the three models resulted in a rate of return of 6.25%, an inflation assumption of 2.05%,
and a real return rate of 4.2%. Mr. Schmidt explained that the results of the modeling
showed a less than 50% chance of attaining the current assumed rate of return of
7.25%. Given these results, Mr. Schmidt recommended adoption of an inflation
assumption of 2.5%, wage inflation and payroll/amortization assumptions of 2.75%, and
a discount rate of 6.75%. Mr. Schmidt presented an alternative recommendation of an
inflation assumption of 2.75%, wage inflation and payroll/amortization assumptions of
3%, and a discount rate of 7.0%.

Mr. Schmidt provided background on the goals of the Plans’ funding policy and
reviewed the Plans’ current amortization policy, and recommended changes based on
current industry standard, including, going forward: (1) using 20-year layers for
amortizing gains and losses and assumption/method changes and (2) using shorter
layers for benefit changes.

Mr. Schmidt noted the Boards’ past practice of phasing in assumption changes and
recommended that, for the upcoming assumption changes, if the Boards elect a phase-
in, it be applied to the unfunded actuarial liability (UAL) payment only. Mr. Schmidt
reviewed projected changes in total (employer and employee) contribution rates under
the first recommendation and the alternative recommendation, both with and without a
three-year phase-in of assumption changes.

In response to a question from Director Niz, Mr. Schmidt explained that the Plans are
expected to achieve funding levels of at least 90 percent by 2030, with changes in
assumptions amortized over 20 years. Mr. Schmidt also explained that the ATU PEPRA
member contribution rate would not change under either of the two recommendations,
because normal cost would not change enough to trigger revision under PEPRA.

After discussion, the Retirement Boards requested based on consensus that the
actuary:

1. Prepare two valuations for presentation at an upcoming Special Meeting: one
that reflects a 6.75% discount rate, 2.5% inflation, 2.75% wage growth, and 20-
year layered amortization for gains/losses and a 3-year phase-in over three
years, and another that reflects a 7.0% discount rate, 2.75% inflation, 3% wage
growth, and 20-year layered amortization for gains/losses with no phase-in; and

2. Provide a copy of the presentation reviewed at the meeting to all Board
members.

25. Information: Discussion Roles and Responsibilities Related to Pension
Administration/new staff (ALL). (Gobel)

Mr. Gobel reminded the Boards that the discussion of staff roles and responsibilities

moved from the list of consent items to new items at the prior meeting. For the current

Page 4 of 6

17492113.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

meeting, Mr. Gobel explained that the written materials provided to the Board has been
updated to reflect the following changes:

Addition of a new Retirement Services Analyst to the internal production team.
Amendment of individual assignments to reflect current job titles and responsibilities.
Expansion of retirement services functions to reflect the transfer of Final Monthly
Compensation calculations from payroll and the increased administrative
requirements associated with disability retirement processing.

There were no questions from the Boards.

REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS

26.

Information: Manager, Pension & Retirement Services Quarterly Verbal Update
(ALL). (Gobel)

Mr. Gobel provided a brief update on staff activities during the current quarter. These
updates included the following items:

1.

2.

Recovery of benefits overpaid to a new retiree in accordance with the Boards’
policy.

Distribution and acceptance of a short-term contract for a new disability examiner,
which was required to comply with the Boards’ policy and replace the prior examiner
that ceased providing the required services in 2020.

Reminder of the April 1, 2021 deadline for completion and submission of Form 700
by all Directors.

PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Public comment was invited on items not listed on the agenda. None was offered.

Page 5 of 6

17492113.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

With no further business to discuss, the Retirement Board meeting was adjourned at
11:49 a.m.

Ralph Niz, Chair

ATTEST:
Henry Li, Secretary

By:

John Gobel, Assistant Secretary

Page 6 of 6

17492113.1



Sacramento Regional Transit District
Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting (IBEW)
Wednesday, March 10, 2021
MEETING MINUTES

This meeting was held as a common meeting of the Sacramento Regional Transit
District Retirement Boards (AEA, AFSCME, ATU, IBEW, MCEG).

This meeting was a teleconference because of the COVID-19 pandemic and in
accordance with the Governor’'s Executive Order N-25-20.

The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:03 a.m. A quorum was present
comprised as follows: Directors Kennedy, Li, Bibbs and McCleskey. Alternate Jennings
was also present. Alternate Pickering was absent.

The Common Chair presided over this Retirement Board meeting.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to calling for motions or a vote, Manager, Pension & Retiree Services John Gobel
indicated that Item 11 (the Independent Auditor’'s Report) had initially included inaccurate
information about the composition of the IBEW Retirement Board. Mr. Gobel explained
that, per a subsequent conversation with the auditor, this agenda item had been corrected
in the agenda posted on the SacRT web site. Accordingly, Mr. Gobel also explained that
today’s vote regarding Item 11 would be inclusive of the administrative change to the
auditor’s report.

2. Motion:  Approving the Minutes for the December 9, 2020 Quarterly Retirement
Board Meeting (IBEW). (Gobel)

6. Motion:  Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended
December 31, 2020 for the IBEW Pension Plan (IBEW). (Adelman)

9. Motion:  Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2020 State Controllers Report for the
IBEW Pension Plan (IBEW). (Adelman)

11. Motion: Receive and File the Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s
Report for the Twelve-Month Period Ended June 30, 2020 (ALL).
(Adelman)

Director Kennedy moved to adopt Agenda Items 2, 6, 9, and 11. The motion was

seconded by Director Li. Agenda Items 2, 6, 9, and 11 were carried unanimously by roll
call vote: Ayes - Kennedy, Li, Bibbs, and McCleskey, Noes — None.

17492108.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

NEW BUSINESS

20. Information: Investment Performance Review by BMO Pyrford for the ATU,
IBEW and Salaried Funds for the International Large Capital Equity
Asset Class for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2020 (ALL).
(Adelman)

Jamie Adelman introduced John Mirante, Chris Remus and Luke Casey from BMO
Pyrford. Mr. Mirante reported that the management team is stable and has not
experienced any changes in personnel, while Mr. Casey discussed investment
performance relative to the benchmark for the International Large Capital asset class.

Brent Bernegger asked for information about how BMO Pyrford has outperformed the
benchmark by a significant margin since 2012. Mr. Casey responded that bear market
periods have been shorter, and the fund’s investment philosophy has consistently
focused on investing in companies that are less leveraged than their peer group and
building a portfolio intended to preserve capital in down markets and limit losses relative
to the benchmark.

There were no other questions from staff or the Boards.

21. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the ATU,
IBEW and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter
Ended December 31, 2020 (ALL). (Adelman)

Ms. Adelman introduced Uvan Tseng from Callan LLC (Callan), who reviewed
investment performance for the quarter ending December 31, 2020. Mr. Tseng indicated
that the retirement fund reached a high-water mark of $350 million during the quarter
ended December 31, 2020 and that value managers and the energy sector were stand-
outs in terms of overall returns. Mr. Tseng also addressed inflation by contrasting the
10-Year Treasury yield from last August with the yield from the prior week but noted that
the TIPS index had still declined on a year-to-date basis.

AEA Retirement Board Director Devorak referenced the current asset allocation and
asked whether the Board should review the current25% allocation to fixed income. Mr.
Tseng responded that an asset allocation study would be presented at the next
guarterly Board meeting and, that long-term assumptions for fixed income are still
positive.

Ms. Adelman advised the Boards of the status of the ongoing transition to of funds into
the new real estate asset class. She informed the Boards that $15 million was invested
with Clarion Partners on March 1, 2021, and that the similar-sized investment with
Morgan Stanley would be completed over the next few quarters as capital is called.

Page 2 of 6

17492108.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

Director Kennedy moved to adopt Agenda Item 20. The motion was seconded by
Director Li. Agenda Item 20 was carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes -
Kennedy, Li, Bibbs, and McCleskey, Noes — None.

23. Information: Receive Information on Status of IBEW Retirement Plan
Experience and Valuation Studies and Actuarially Determined
Contribution Rates (IBEW). (Gobel)

Agenda items 22-24 were presented together.

Mr. Gobel introduced the consulting actuary for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried Employee
Retirement Plans, Graham Schmidt of Cheiron, and indicated that Mr. Schmidt would be
discussing the preliminary results of the valuations for the Plan year ended June 30,
2020. Mr. Gobel also explained that Mr. Schmidt would be discussing the preliminary
results of a concurrent experience study, which was the first such study conducted
since 2016 and which could include new assumptions regarding inflation and other
economic factors. Ms. Adelman explained that the actuary would be seeking direction
from the Boards to finalize certain economic assumptions in order for him to complete
the corresponding valuations.

Mr. Schmidt presented a preliminary review of the actuarial valuations in progress and
provided information regarding the experience study, noting that the preliminary results
were likely to change as certain items were finalized. Based on preliminary data,
investment earnings on a market basis were approximately 1.8% for the ATU and IBEW
Plans, and 1.5% for the Salaried Plan. On an actuarial (smoothed) basis, the rate of
return was between approximately 4.9% - 5.4% for all Plans. Payroll increased more
than was assumed, due to a higher participant count, although contribution rates did not
increase. PEPRA member contribution rates would not change under current
assumptions, because normal cost would not change enough to trigger revision under
PEPRA.

Regarding existing economic assumptions, Mr. Schmidt explained that the current
assumed rate of return for the Plans is 7.25% and the current inflation assumption is
3%, resulting in a real return rate of 4.25%.

Mr. Schmidt recommended reducing the Plans’ inflation assumption from 3% to 2.5%,
given the historical annual inflation rates since 2000, Callan’s 10-year inflation
assumption, and rates applied by other public plans. Mr. Schmidt recommended that, if
the Boards reduce the inflation assumption to 2.5%, the wage inflation assumption and
payroll/amortization assumptions be revised to 2.75%, rather than matching the inflation
assumption, to be consistent with experts’ projections.

Mr. Schmidt presented modeling prepared using the Plans’ portfolio under three
different sets of capital market projections and inflation assumptions (Callan’s 10-year
projection, and the 10-year and 20-year assumptions based on results of a national
survey of defined benefit pension plans conducted by another actuarial firm). Averaging

Page 3 of 6

17492108.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

the three models resulted in a rate of return of 6.25%, an inflation assumption of 2.05%,
and a real return rate of 4.2%. Mr. Schmidt explained that the results of the modeling
showed a less than 50% chance of attaining the current assumed rate of return of
7.25%. Given these results, Mr. Schmidt recommended adoption of an inflation
assumption of 2.5%, wage inflation and payroll/amortization assumptions of 2.75%, and
a discount rate of 6.75%. Mr. Schmidt presented an alternative recommendation of an
inflation assumption of 2.75%, wage inflation and payroll/amortization assumptions of
3%, and a discount rate of 7.0%.

Mr. Schmidt provided background on the goals of the Plans’ funding policy and
reviewed the Plans’ current amortization policy, and recommended changes based on
current industry standard, including, going forward: (1) using 20-year layers for
amortizing gains and losses and assumption/method changes and (2) using shorter
layers for benefit changes.

Mr. Schmidt noted the Boards’ past practice of phasing in assumption changes and
recommended that, for the upcoming assumption changes, if the Boards elect a phase-
in, it be applied to the unfunded actuarial liability (UAL) payment only. Mr. Schmidt
reviewed projected changes in total (employer and employee) contribution rates under
the first recommendation and the alternative recommendation, both with and without a
three-year phase-in of assumption changes.

In response to a question from ATU Retirement Board Director Niz, Mr. Schmidt
explained that the Plans are expected to achieve funding levels of at least 90 percent by
2030, with changes in assumptions amortized over 20 years. Mr. Schmidt also
explained that the ATU PEPRA member contribution rate would not change under either
of the two recommendations, because normal cost would not change enough to trigger
revision under PEPRA.

After discussion, the Retirement Boards requested based on consensus that the
actuary:

1. Prepare two valuations for presentation at an upcoming Special Meeting: one
that reflects a 6.75% discount rate, 2.5% inflation, 2.75% wage growth, and 20-
year layered amortization for gains/losses and a 3-year phase-in over three
years, and another that reflects a 7.0% discount rate, 2.75% inflation, 3% wage
growth, and 20-year layered amortization for gains/losses with no phase-in; and

2. Provide a copy of the presentation reviewed at the meeting to all Board
members.

25. Information: Discussion Roles and Responsibilities Related to Pension
Administration/new staff (ALL). (Gobel)

Mr. Gobel reminded the Boards that the discussion of staff roles and responsibilities

moved from the list of consent items to new items at the prior meeting. For the current

Page 4 of 6

17492108.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

meeting, Mr. Gobel explained that the written materials provided to the Board has been
updated to reflect the following changes:

Addition of a new Retirement Services Analyst to the internal production team.
Amendment of individual assignments to reflect current job titles and responsibilities.
Expansion of retirement services functions to reflect the transfer of Final Monthly
Compensation calculations from payroll and the increased administrative
requirements associated with disability retirement processing.

There were no questions from the Boards.

REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS

26.

Information: Manager, Pension & Retirement Services Quarterly Verbal Update
(ALL). (Gobel)

Mr. Gobel provided a brief update on staff activities during the current quarter. These
updates included the following items:

1.

2.

Recovery of benefits overpaid to a new retiree in accordance with the Boards’
policy.

Distribution and acceptance of a short-term contract for a new disability examiner,
which was required to comply with the Boards’ policy and replace the prior examiner
that ceased providing the required services in 2020.

Reminder of the April 1, 2021 deadline for completion and submission of Form 700
by all Directors.

PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Public comment was invited on items not listed on the agenda. None was offered.

Page 5 of 6

17492108.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

With no further business to discuss, the Retirement Board meeting was adjourned at
11:49 a.m.

Constance Bibbs, Chair

ATTEST:
Henry Li, Secretary

By:

John Gobel, Assistant Secretary

Page 6 of 6

17492108.1



Sacramento Regional Transit District
Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting (AEA)
Wednesday, March 10, 2021
MEETING MINUTES

This meeting was held as a common meeting of the Sacramento Regional Transit
District Retirement Boards (AEA, AFSCME, ATU, IBEW, MCEG).

This meeting was a teleconference because of the COVID-19 pandemic and in
accordance with the Governor’'s Executive Order N-25-20.

The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:03 a.m. A quorum was present
comprised as follows: Directors Kennedy, Li, Devorak and McGoldrick. Alternate
Jennings was also present. Alternate Santhanakrishnan was absent.

The Common Chair presided over this Retirement Board meeting.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to calling for motions or a vote, Manager, Pension & Retiree Services John Gobel
indicated that Item 11 (the Independent Auditor’'s Report) had initially included inaccurate
information about the composition of the IBEW Retirement Board. Mr. Gobel explained
that, per a subsequent conversation with the auditor, this agenda item had been corrected
in the agenda posted on the SacRT web site. Accordingly, Mr. Gobel also explained that
today’s vote regarding Item 11 would be inclusive of the administrative change to the
auditor’s report.

3. Motion:  Approving the Minutes for the December 9, 2020 Quarterly Retirement
Board Meeting (AEA). (Gobel)

7. Motion:  Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended
December 31, 2020 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA, AFSCME,
MCEG). (Adelman)

10 Motion:  Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2020 State Controllers Report for the
Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Adelman)

11. Motion: Receive and File the Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s
Report for the Twelve-Month Period Ended June 30, 2020 (ALL).
(Adelman)

Director Kennedy moved to adopt Agenda Items 3, 7, 10 and 11. The motion was

seconded by Director Li. Agenda Items 3, 7, 10 and 11 were carried unanimously by roll
call vote: Ayes - Kennedy, Li, Devorak, and McGoldrick, Noes — None.

17492115.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

NEW BUSINESS

20. Information: Investment Performance Review by BMO Pyrford for the ATU,
IBEW and Salaried Funds for the International Large Capital Equity
Asset Class for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2020 (ALL).
(Adelman)

Jamie Adelman introduced John Mirante, Chris Remus and Luke Casey from BMO
Pyrford. Mr. Mirante reported that the management team is stable and has not
experienced any changes in personnel, while Mr. Casey discussed investment
performance relative to the benchmark for the International Large Capital asset class.

Brent Bernegger asked for information about how BMO Pyrford has outperformed the
benchmark by a significant margin since 2012. Mr. Casey responded that bear market
periods have been shorter, and the fund’s investment philosophy has consistently
focused on investing in companies that are less leveraged than their peer group and
building a portfolio intended to preserve capital in down markets and limit losses relative
to the benchmark.

There were no other questions from staff or the Boards.

21. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the ATU,
IBEW and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter
Ended December 31, 2020 (ALL). (Adelman)

Ms. Adelman introduced Uvan Tseng from Callan LLC (Callan), who reviewed
investment performance for the quarter ending December 31, 2020. Mr. Tseng indicated
that the retirement fund reached a high-water mark of $350 million during the quarter
ended December 31, 2020 and that value managers and the energy sector were stand-
outs in terms of overall returns. Mr. Tseng also addressed inflation by contrasting the
10-Year Treasury yield from last August with the yield from the prior week but noted that
the TIPS index had still declined on a year-to-date basis.

Director Devorak referenced the current asset allocation and asked whether the Board

should review the current25% allocation to fixed income. Mr. Tseng responded that an

asset allocation study would be presented at the next quarterly Board meeting and, that
long-term assumptions for fixed income are still positive.

Ms. Adelman advised the Boards of the status of the ongoing transition to of funds into
the new real estate asset class. She informed the Boards that $15 million was invested
with Clarion Partners on March 1, 2021, and that the similar-sized investment with

Director Kennedy moved to adopt Agenda Item 20. The motion was seconded by

Director Li. Agenda Item 20 was carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes -
Kennedy, Li, Devorak and McGoldrick, Noes — None.

Page 2 of 6

17492115.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

24. Information: Receive Information on Status of Salaried Retirement Plan
Experience and Valuation Studies and Actuarially Determined
Contribution Rates (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Gobel)

Agenda items 22-24 were presented together.

Mr. Gobel introduced the consulting actuary for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried Employee
Retirement Plans, Graham Schmidt of Cheiron, and indicated that Mr. Schmidt would be
discussing the preliminary results of the valuations for the Plan year ended June 30,
2020. Mr. Gobel also explained that Mr. Schmidt would be discussing the preliminary
results of a concurrent experience study, which was the first such study conducted
since 2016 and which could include new assumptions regarding inflation and other
economic factors. Ms. Adelman explained that the actuary would be seeking direction
from the Boards to finalize certain economic assumptions in order for him to complete
the corresponding valuations.

Mr. Schmidt presented a preliminary review of the actuarial valuations in progress and
provided information regarding the experience study, noting that the preliminary results
were likely to change as certain items were finalized. Based on preliminary data,
investment earnings on a market basis were approximately 1.8% for the ATU and IBEW
Plans, and 1.5% for the Salaried Plan. On an actuarial (smoothed) basis, the rate of
return was between approximately 4.9% - 5.4% for all Plans. Payroll increased more
than was assumed, due to a higher participant count, although contribution rates did not
increase. PEPRA member contribution rates would not change under current
assumptions, because normal cost would not change enough to trigger revision under
PEPRA.

Regarding existing economic assumptions, Mr. Schmidt explained that the current
assumed rate of return for the Plans is 7.25% and the current inflation assumption is
3%, resulting in a real return rate of 4.25%.

Mr. Schmidt recommended reducing the Plans’ inflation assumption from 3% to 2.5%,
given the historical annual inflation rates since 2000, Callan’s 10-year inflation
assumption, and rates applied by other public plans. Mr. Schmidt recommended that, if
the Boards reduce the inflation assumption to 2.5%, the wage inflation assumption and
payroll/amortization assumptions be revised to 2.75%, rather than matching the inflation
assumption, to be consistent with experts’ projections.

Mr. Schmidt presented modeling prepared using the Plans’ portfolio under three
different sets of capital market projections and inflation assumptions (Callan’s 10-year
projection, and the 10-year and 20-year assumptions based on results of a national
survey of defined benefit pension plans conducted by another actuarial firm). Averaging
the three models resulted in a rate of return of 6.25%, an inflation assumption of 2.05%,
and a real return rate of 4.2%. Mr. Schmidt explained that the results of the modeling
showed a less than 50% chance of attaining the current assumed rate of return of
7.25%. Given these results, Mr. Schmidt recommended adoption of an inflation

Page 3 of 6

17492115.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

assumption of 2.5%, wage inflation and payroll/amortization assumptions of 2.75%, and
a discount rate of 6.75%. Mr. Schmidt presented an alternative recommendation of an
inflation assumption of 2.75%, wage inflation and payroll/amortization assumptions of
3%, and a discount rate of 7.0%.

Mr. Schmidt provided background on the goals of the Plans’ funding policy and
reviewed the Plans’ current amortization policy, and recommended changes based on
current industry standard, including, going forward: (1) using 20-year layers for
amortizing gains and losses and assumption/method changes and (2) using shorter
layers for benefit changes.

Mr. Schmidt noted the Boards’ past practice of phasing in assumption changes and
recommended that, for the upcoming assumption changes, if the Boards elect a phase-
in, it be applied to the unfunded actuarial liability (UAL) payment only. Mr. Schmidt
reviewed projected changes in total (employer and employee) contribution rates under
the first recommendation and the alternative recommendation, both with and without a
three-year phase-in of assumption changes.

In response to a question from ATU Retirement Board Director Niz, Mr. Schmidt
explained that the Plans are expected to achieve funding levels of at least 90 percent by
2030, with changes in assumptions amortized over 20 years. Mr. Schmidt also
explained that the ATU PEPRA member contribution rate would not change under either
of the two recommendations, because normal cost would not change enough to trigger
revision under PEPRA.

After discussion, the Retirement Boards requested based on consensus that the
actuary:

1. Prepare two valuations for presentation at an upcoming Special Meeting: one
that reflects a 6.75% discount rate, 2.5% inflation, 2.75% wage growth, and 20-
year layered amortization for gains/losses and a 3-year phase-in over three
years, and another that reflects a 7.0% discount rate, 2.75% inflation, 3% wage
growth, and 20-year layered amortization for gains/losses with no phase-in; and

2. Provide a copy of the presentation reviewed at the meeting to all Board
members.

25. Information: Discussion Roles and Responsibilities Related to Pension
Administration/new staff (ALL). (Gobel)

Mr. Gobel reminded the Boards that the discussion of staff roles and responsibilities
moved from the list of consent items to new items at the prior meeting. For the current
meeting, Mr. Gobel explained that the written materials provided to the Board has been
updated to reflect the following changes:

Page 4 of 6

17492115.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

Addition of a new Retirement Services Analyst to the internal production team.
Amendment of individual assignments to reflect current job titles and responsibilities.
Expansion of retirement services functions to reflect the transfer of Final Monthly
Compensation calculations from payroll and the increased administrative
requirements associated with disability retirement processing.

There were no questions from the Boards.

REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS

26. Information: Manager, Pension & Retirement Services Quarterly Verbal Update
(ALL). (Gobel)

Mr. Gobel provided a brief update on staff activities during the current quarter. These
updates included the following items:

1. Recovery of benefits overpaid to a new retiree in accordance with the Boards’
policy.

2. Distribution and acceptance of a short-term contract for a new disability examiner,
which was required to comply with the Boards’ policy and replace the prior examiner
that ceased providing the required services in 2020.

3. Reminder of the April 1, 2021 deadline for completion and submission of Form 700
by all Directors.

PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Public comment was invited on items not listed on the agenda. None was offered.

With no further business to discuss, the Retirement Board meeting was adjourned at
11:49 a.m.

Page 5 of 6

17492115.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

Russel Devorak, Chair

ATTEST:

Henry Li, Secretary

By:

John Gobel, Assistant Secretary

Page 6 of 6

17492115.1



Sacramento Regional Transit District
Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting (AFSCME)
Wednesday, March 10, 2021
MEETING MINUTES

This meeting was held as a common meeting of the Sacramento Regional Transit
District Retirement Boards (AEA, AFSCME, ATU, IBEW, MCEG).

This meeting was a teleconference because of the COVID-19 pandemic and in
accordance with the Governor’'s Executive Order N-25-20.

The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:03 a.m. A quorum was present
comprised as follows: Directors Kennedy, Li, and Thompson, and Alternate Salva.
Alternate Jennings was also present. Director Guimond was absent.

The Common Chair presided over this Retirement Board meeting.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to calling for motions or a vote, Manager, Pension & Retiree Services John Gobel
indicated that Item 11 (the Independent Auditor’'s Report) had initially included inaccurate
information about the composition of the IBEW Retirement Board. Mr. Gobel explained
that, per a subsequent conversation with the auditor, this agenda item had been corrected
in the agenda posted on the SacRT web site. Accordingly, Mr. Gobel also explained that
today’s vote regarding Item 11 would be inclusive of the administrative change to the
auditor’s report.

7. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended
December 31, 2020 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA, AFSCME,
MCEG). (Adelman)

10. Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2020 State Controllers Report for
the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Adelman)

11. Motion: Receive and File the Financial Statements with Independent
Auditor’'s Report for the Twelve-Month Period Ended June 30, 2020
(ALL). (Adelman)

12. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the September 9, 2020 Quarterly
Retirement Board Meeting (AFSCME). (Gobel)

13. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended

September 30, 2020 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AFSCME).
(Adelman)

17492118.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

14. Resolution: Ratification and Acceptance of Revised Actuarially Determined
Contributions for Fiscal Year 2021 (AFSCME). (Adelman)

15. Resolution: Amend the Agreement with Cheiron, Inc. for Actuarial Services to
Exercise a One-Year Option (AFSCME). (Gobel)

16. Motion: Receive and File Investment Performance Report of the S&P 500
Index and MSCI EAFE Funds by State Street Global Advisors
(SSgA) for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried Employee Retirement
Funds for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2020 (AFSCME).
(Adelman)

17. Motion: Receive and File Investment Performance Report by Atlanta
Capital for the ATU, IBEW, and Salaried Retirement Funds for the
Domestic Small Cap Equity Asset Class for the Quarter Ended
September 30, 2020 (AFSCME). (Adelman)

18. Motion: Receive and File Investment Performance Results for the ATU,
IBEW, and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter
Ended September 30, 2020 (AFSCME). (Adelman)

19. Resolution: Appointment of John Gobel as Assistant Secretary (AFSCME).
(Gobel)

Director Kennedy moved to adopt Agenda Items 7 and 10-19. The motion was

seconded by Director Li. Agenda Items 7 and 10-19 were carried unanimously by roll
call vote: Ayes - Kennedy, Li, Thompson and Salva, Noes — None.

NEW BUSINESS

20. Information: Investment Performance Review by BMO Pyrford for the ATU,
IBEW and Salaried Funds for the International Large Capital Equity
Asset Class for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2020 (ALL).
(Adelman)

Jamie Adelman introduced John Mirante, Chris Remus and Luke Casey from BMO
Pyrford. Mr. Mirante reported that the management team is stable and has not
experienced any changes in personnel, while Mr. Casey discussed investment
performance relative to the benchmark for the International Large Capital asset class.

Brent Bernegger asked for information about how BMO Pyrford has outperformed the
benchmark by a significant margin since 2012. Mr. Casey responded that bear market
periods have been shorter, and the fund’s investment philosophy has consistently
focused on investing in companies that are less leveraged than their peer group and

Page 2 of 6

17492118.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

building a portfolio intended to preserve capital in down markets and limit losses relative
to the benchmark.

There were no other questions from staff or the Boards.

21. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the ATU,
IBEW and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter
Ended December 31, 2020 (ALL). (Adelman)

Ms. Adelman introduced Uvan Tseng from Callan LLC (Callan), who reviewed
investment performance for the quarter ending December 31, 2020. Mr. Tseng indicated
that the retirement fund reached a high-water mark of $350 million during the quarter
ended December 31, 2020 and that value managers and the energy sector were stand-
outs in terms of overall returns. Mr. Tseng also addressed inflation by contrasting the
10-Year Treasury yield from last August with the yield from the prior week, but noted
that the TIPS index had still declined on a year-to-date basis.

AEA Retirement Board Director Devorak referenced the current asset allocation and
asked whether the Board should review the current25% allocation to fixed income. Mr.
Tseng responded that an asset allocation study would be presented at the next
guarterly Board meeting and, that long-term assumptions for fixed income are still
positive.

Ms. Adelman advised the Boards of the status of the ongoing transition to of funds into
the new real estate asset class. She informed the Boards that $15 million was invested
with Clarion Partners on March 1, 2021, and that the similar-sized investment with
Morgan Stanley would be completed over the next few quarters as capital is called.

Director Kennedy moved to adopt Agenda Item 20. The motion was seconded by
Director Li. Agenda Item 20 was carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes -
Kennedy, Li, Thompson and Salva, Noes - None

24. Information: Receive Information on Status of Salaried Retirement Plan
Experience and Valuation Studies and Actuarially Determined
Contribution Rates (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Gobel)

Agenda items 22-24 were presented together.

Mr. Gobel introduced the consulting actuary for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried Employee
Retirement Plans, Graham Schmidt of Cheiron, and indicated that Mr. Schmidt would be
discussing the preliminary results of the valuations for the Plan year ended June 30,
2020. Mr. Gobel also explained that Mr. Schmidt would be discussing the preliminary
results of a concurrent experience study, which was the first such study conducted
since 2016 and which could include new assumptions regarding inflation and other
economic factors. Ms. Adelman explained that the actuary would be seeking direction

Page 3 of 6

17492118.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

from the Boards to finalize certain economic assumptions in order for him to complete
the corresponding valuations.

Mr. Schmidt presented a preliminary review of the actuarial valuations in progress and
provided information regarding the experience study, noting that the preliminary results
were likely to change as certain items were finalized. Based on preliminary data,
investment earnings on a market basis were approximately 1.8% for the ATU and IBEW
Plans, and 1.5% for the Salaried Plan. On an actuarial (smoothed) basis, the rate of
return was between approximately 4.9% - 5.4% for all Plans. Payroll increased more
than was assumed, due to a higher participant count, although contribution rates did not
increase. PEPRA member contribution rates would not change under current
assumptions, because normal cost would not change enough to trigger revision under
PEPRA.

Regarding existing economic assumptions, Mr. Schmidt explained that the current
assumed rate of return for the Plans is 7.25% and the current inflation assumption is
3%, resulting in a real return rate of 4.25%.

Mr. Schmidt recommended reducing the Plans’ inflation assumption from 3% to 2.5%,
given the historical annual inflation rates since 2000, Callan’s 10-year inflation
assumption, and rates applied by other public plans. Mr. Schmidt recommended that, if
the Boards reduce the inflation assumption to 2.5%, the wage inflation assumption and
payroll/amortization assumptions be revised to 2.75%, rather than matching the inflation
assumption, to be consistent with experts’ projections.

Mr. Schmidt presented modeling prepared using the Plans’ portfolio under three
different sets of capital market projections and inflation assumptions (Callan’s 10-year
projection, and the 10-year and 20-year assumptions based on results of a national
survey of defined benefit pension plans conducted by another actuarial firm). Averaging
the three models resulted in a rate of return of 6.25%, an inflation assumption of 2.05%,
and a real return rate of 4.2%. Mr. Schmidt explained that the results of the modeling
showed a less than 50% chance of attaining the current assumed rate of return of
7.25%. Given these results, Mr. Schmidt recommended adoption of an inflation
assumption of 2.5%, wage inflation and payroll/amortization assumptions of 2.75%, and
a discount rate of 6.75%. Mr. Schmidt presented an alternative recommendation of an
inflation assumption of 2.75%, wage inflation and payroll/amortization assumptions of
3%, and a discount rate of 7.0%.

Mr. Schmidt provided background on the goals of the Plans’ funding policy and
reviewed the Plans’ current amortization policy, and recommended changes based on
current industry standard, including, going forward: (1) using 20-year layers for
amortizing gains and losses and assumption/method changes and (2) using shorter
layers for benefit changes.

Mr. Schmidt noted the Boards’ past practice of phasing in assumption changes and
recommended that, for the upcoming assumption changes, if the Boards elect a phase-

Page 4 of 6

17492118.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

in, it be applied to the unfunded actuarial liability (UAL) payment only. Mr. Schmidt
reviewed projected changes in total (employer and employee) contribution rates under
the first recommendation and the alternative recommendation, both with and without a
three-year phase-in of assumption changes.

In response to a question from ATU Retirement Board Director Niz, Mr. Schmidt
explained that the Plans are expected to achieve funding levels of at least 90 percent by
2030, with changes in assumptions amortized over 20 years. Mr. Schmidt also
explained that the ATU PEPRA member contribution rate would not change under either
of the two recommendations, because normal cost would not change enough to trigger
revision under PEPRA.

After discussion, the Retirement Boards requested based on consensus that the
actuary:

1. Prepare two valuations for presentation at an upcoming Special Meeting: one
that reflects a 6.75% discount rate, 2.5% inflation, 2.75% wage growth, and 20-
year layered amortization for gains/losses and a 3-year phase-in over three
years, and another that reflects a 7.0% discount rate, 2.75% inflation, 3% wage
growth, and 20-year layered amortization for gains/losses with no phase-in; and

2. Provide a copy of the presentation reviewed at the meeting to all Board
members.

25. Information: Discussion Roles and Responsibilities Related to Pension
Administration/new staff (ALL). (Gobel)

Mr. Gobel reminded the Boards that the discussion of staff roles and responsibilities
moved from the list of consent items to new items at the prior meeting. For the current
meeting, Mr. Gobel explained that the written materials provided to the Board has been
updated to reflect the following changes:

Addition of a new Retirement Services Analyst to the internal production team.
Amendment of individual assignments to reflect current job titles and responsibilities.
Expansion of retirement services functions to reflect the transfer of Final Monthly
Compensation calculations from payroll and the increased administrative
requirements associated with disability retirement processing.

There were no questions from the Boards.

REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS

26. Information: Manager, Pension & Retirement Services Quarterly Verbal Update
(ALL). (Gobel)

Mr. Gobel provided a brief update on staff activities during the current quarter. These
updates included the following items:

Page 5 of 6

17492118.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

1. Recovery of benefits overpaid to a new retiree in accordance with the Boards’
policy.

2. Distribution and acceptance of a short-term contract for a new disability examiner,
which was required to comply with the Boards’ policy and replace the prior examiner
that ceased providing the required services in 2020.

3. Reminder of the April 1, 2021 deadline for completion and submission of Form 700
by all Directors.

PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Public comment was invited on items not listed on the agenda. None was offered.

With no further business to discuss, the Retirement Board meeting was adjourned at
11:49 a.m.

Peter Guimond, Chair

ATTEST:

Henry Li, Secretary

By:

John Gobel, Assistant Secretary

Page 6 of 6

17492118.1



Sacramento Regional Transit District
Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting (MCEG)
Wednesday, March 10, 2021
MEETING MINUTES

This meeting was held as a common meeting of the Sacramento Regional Transit
District Retirement Boards (AEA, AFSCME, ATU, IBEW, MCEG).

This meeting was a teleconference because of the COVID-19 pandemic and in
accordance with the Governor’'s Executive Order N-25-20.

The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:03 a.m. A quorum was present
comprised as follows: Directors Kennedy, Li, Ham, and Norman were present. Alternate
Jennings was also present. Alternate Flores was absent.

The Common Chair presided over this Retirement Board meeting.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to calling for motions or a vote, Manager, Pension & Retiree Services John Gobel
indicated that Item 11 (the Independent Auditor’'s Report) had initially included inaccurate
information about the composition of the IBEW Retirement Board. Mr. Gobel explained
that, per a subsequent conversation with the auditor, this agenda item had been corrected
in the agenda posted on the SacRT web site. Accordingly, Mr. Gobel also explained that
today’s vote regarding Item 11 would be inclusive of the administrative change to the
auditor’s report.

4. Motion:  Approving the Minutes for the December 9, 2020 Quarterly Retirement
Board Meeting (MCEG). (Gobel)

7. Motion:  Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended
December 31, 2020 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA, AFSCME,
MCEG). (Adelman)

10 Motion:  Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2020 State Controllers Report for the
Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Adelman)

11. Motion: Receive and File the Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s
Report for the Twelve-Month Period Ended June 30, 2020 (ALL).
(Adelman)

Director Kennedy moved to adopt Agenda Items 4, 7, 10 and 11. The motion was

seconded by Director Li. Agenda Items 4, 7, 10 and 11 were carried unanimously by roll
call vote: Ayes - Kennedy, Li, Ham and Norman, Noes — None.

17492110.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

NEW BUSINESS

20. Information: Investment Performance Review by BMO Pyrford for the ATU,
IBEW and Salaried Funds for the International Large Capital Equity
Asset Class for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2020 (ALL).
(Adelman)

Jamie Adelman introduced John Mirante, Chris Remus and Luke Casey from BMO
Pyrford. Mr. Mirante reported that the management team is stable and has not
experienced any changes in personnel, while Mr. Casey discussed investment
performance relative to the benchmark for the International Large Capital asset class.

Brent Bernegger asked for information about how BMO Pyrford has outperformed the
benchmark by a significant margin since 2012. Mr. Casey responded that bear market
periods have been shorter, and the fund’s investment philosophy has consistently
focused on investing in companies that are less leveraged than their peer group and
building a portfolio intended to preserve capital in down markets and limit losses relative
to the benchmark.

There were no other questions from staff or the Boards.

21. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the ATU,
IBEW and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter
Ended December 31, 2020 (ALL). (Adelman)

Ms. Adelman introduced Uvan Tseng from Callan LLC (Callan), who reviewed
investment performance for the quarter ending December 31, 2020. Mr. Tseng indicated
that the retirement fund reached a high-water mark of $350 million during the quarter
ended December 31, 2020 and that value managers and the energy sector were stand-
outs in terms of overall returns. Mr. Tseng also addressed inflation by contrasting the
10-Year Treasury yield from last August with the yield from the prior week but noted that
the TIPS index had still declined on a year-to-date basis.

AEA Retirement Board Director Devorak referenced the current asset allocation and
asked whether the Board should review the current25% allocation to fixed income. Mr.
Tseng responded that an asset allocation study would be presented at the next
guarterly Board meeting and, that long-term assumptions for fixed income are still
positive.

Ms. Adelman advised the Boards of the status of the ongoing transition to of funds into
the new real estate asset class. She informed the Boards that $15 million was invested
with Clarion Partners on March 1, 2021, and that the similar-sized investment with
Morgan Stanley would be completed over the next few quarters as capital is called.

Page 2 of 6

17492110.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

Director Kennedy moved to adopt Agenda Item 20. The motion was seconded by
Director Li. Agenda Item 20 was carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes -
Kennedy, Li, Ham, and Norman, Noes — None.

24. Information: Receive Information on Status of Salaried Retirement Plan
Experience and Valuation Studies and Actuarially Determined
Contribution Rates (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Gobel)

Agenda items 22-24 were presented together.

Mr. Gobel introduced the consulting actuary for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried Employee
Retirement Plans, Graham Schmidt of Cheiron, and indicated that Mr. Schmidt would be
discussing the preliminary results of the valuations for the Plan year ended June 30,
2020. Mr. Gobel also explained that Mr. Schmidt would be discussing the preliminary
results of a concurrent experience study, which was the first such study conducted
since 2016 and which could include new assumptions regarding inflation and other
economic factors. Ms. Adelman explained that the actuary would be seeking direction
from the Boards to finalize certain economic assumptions in order for him to complete
the corresponding valuations.

Mr. Schmidt presented a preliminary review of the actuarial valuations in progress and
provided information regarding the experience study, noting that the preliminary results
were likely to change as certain items were finalized. Based on preliminary data,
investment earnings on a market basis were approximately 1.8% for the ATU and IBEW
Plans, and 1.5% for the Salaried Plan. On an actuarial (smoothed) basis, the rate of
return was between approximately 4.9% - 5.4% for all Plans. Payroll increased more
than was assumed, due to a higher participant count, although contribution rates did not
increase. PEPRA member contribution rates would not change under current
assumptions, because normal cost would not change enough to trigger revision under
PEPRA.

Regarding existing economic assumptions, Mr. Schmidt explained that the current
assumed rate of return for the Plans is 7.25% and the current inflation assumption is
3%, resulting in a real return rate of 4.25%.

Mr. Schmidt recommended reducing the Plans’ inflation assumption from 3% to 2.5%,
given the historical annual inflation rates since 2000, Callan’s 10-year inflation
assumption, and rates applied by other public plans. Mr. Schmidt recommended that, if
the Boards reduce the inflation assumption to 2.5%, the wage inflation assumption and
payroll/amortization assumptions be revised to 2.75%, rather than matching the inflation
assumption, to be consistent with experts’ projections.

Mr. Schmidt presented modeling prepared using the Plans’ portfolio under three
different sets of capital market projections and inflation assumptions (Callan’s 10-year
projection, and the 10-year and 20-year assumptions based on results of a national
survey of defined benefit pension plans conducted by another actuarial firm). Averaging

Page 3 of 6

17492110.1



March 10, 2021 Meeting Minutes — Continued

the three models resulted in a rate of return of 6.25%, an inflation assumption of 2.05%,
and a real return rate of 4.2%. Mr. Schmidt explained that the results of the modeling
showed a less than 50% chance of attaining the current assumed rate of return of
7.25%. Given these results, Mr. Schmidt recommended adoption of an inflation
assumption of 2.5%, wage inflation and payroll/amortization assumptions of 2.75%, and
a discount rate of 6.75%. Mr. Schmidt presented an alternative recommendation of an
inflation assumption of 2.75%, wage inflation and payroll/amortization assumptions of
3%, and a discount rate of 7.0%.

Mr. Schmidt provided background on the goals of the Plans’ funding policy and
reviewed the Plans’ current amortization policy, and recommended changes based on
current industry standard, including, going forward: (1) using 20-year layers for
amortizing gains and losses and assumption/method changes and (2) using shorter
layers for benefit changes.

Mr. Schmidt noted the Boards’ past practice of phasing in assumption changes and
recommended that, for the upcoming assumption changes, if the Boards elect a phase-
in, it be applied to the unfunded actuarial liability (UAL) payment only. Mr. Schmidt
reviewed projected changes in total (employer and employee) contribution rates under
the first recommendation and the alternative recommendation, both with and without a
three-year phase-in of assumption changes.

In response to a question from ATU Retirement Board Director Niz, Mr. Schmidt
explained that the Plans are expected to achieve funding levels of at least 90 percent by
2030, with changes in assumptions amortized over 20 years. Mr. Schmidt also
explained that the ATU PEPRA member contribution rate would not change under either
of the two recommendations, because normal cost would not change enough to trigger
revision under PEPRA.

After discussion, the Retirement Boards requested based on consensus that the
actuary:

1. Prepare two valuations for presentation at an upcoming Special Meeting: one
that reflects a 6.75% discount rate, 2.5% inflation, 2.75% wage growth, and 20-
year layered amortization for gains/losses and a 3-year phase-in over three
years, and another that reflects a 7.0% discount rate, 2.75% inflation, 3% wage
growth, and 20-year layere